
Page 1 of 8 
 

STAFF MEETING MINUTES 
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

THURSDAY, JUNE 18, 2020 
COUNTY-CITY BUILDING 

ROOM 112 – CITY/COUNTY CHAMBERS 
8:30 A.M. 

 
Commissioners Present:  Sean Flowerday, Chair; Rick Vest, Vice Chair; Roma Amundson, Deb 
Schorr and Christa Yoakum 
 
Others Present:  Kerry Eagan and Dave Derbin, Chief Administrative Officers; Ann Ames, Deputy 
Chief Administrative Officer; and Leslie Brestel, County Clerk’s Office 

 
Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the County-
City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska web site and provided to the 
media on June 17, 2020. 

 
The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at 8:32 a.m.   
 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

1. APPROVAL OF STAFF MEETING MINUTES FOR JUNE 11, 2020 
 

MOTION:  Yoakum moved and Vest seconded approval of the June 11, 2020 Staff Meeting 
minutes.  Yoakum, Vest and Flowerday voted yes. Amundson and Schorr were absent.  Motion 
carried 3-0. 

 
2. LEGISLATIVE UPDATE – Joe Kohout and Brennen Miller, Kissel, Kohout, ES Associates 

LLC   
 
Kohout reviewed the weekly legislative report (Exhibit 1). 
 
When asked what the Legislature’s priorities may be, Kohout answered property tax relief, 
business incentives package, and the UNMC project will be the three biggest priorities.  The 
Forecasting Board will meet in July to set the estimate for the Appropriations Committee. 
 
Regarding the 2021 Tri-County Breakfast, Miller suggested it be held on Monday, January 11 
from 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. at the Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) office. 
 

DEPUTY CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT 
 

A. Lancaster County 2020 Priorities 
 
No updates were given. 



Page 2 of 8 
 

DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 

A. Parks & Recreation Advisory Board Meeting – Vest 
 
Vest reported the Lincoln City pools are open with limited sessions and capacity, the AARP 
senior citizen workout facility is in progress, and the new pickleball courts are open.  There has 
been graffiti at Wilderness Park. 
 
Amundson entered the meeting at 8:45 a.m. 
 
3. SALE OF BENNET SHOP – Pam Dingman, Lancaster County Engineer 
 
Derbin reviewed the letters of interest from the Bennet Area Historical Society and Nebraska 
City Utilities (see agenda packet) and Dingman stated her desire is to continue with a bid 
process.  
 
It was the consensus of the Board to proceed with the surplus property process. 
 

DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS ATTENDED CONTINUED 
 

B. Realtors Association Government Affairs Committee – Amundson 
 
Amundson said the Paycheck Protection Program, credit scores as relating to eviction and loan 
forbearance, Phase 5 of the HEROES Act, and the Southeast Nebraska Development District 
(SENDD) program were discussed. 
 

C. Mutual Aid Meeting – Schorr / Vest 
 
Vest stated the meeting was postponed. 
 

D. Visitors Promotion Advisory Committee – Amundson 
 
Amundson said the Visitors Promotion Committee (VPC) has had a $39,000 income loss.  The 
VPC will request .05% from lodging funds to go to the Visitors Promotion Improvement Fund.  
The 2021 budget has been decreased 23%. 
 
4. DEPARTMENT BUDGET HEARINGS – Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer 
 
Meyer confirmed there will be a special meeting next Tuesday after the regular Tuesday Board 
meeting with most of the City of Lincoln departments to complete the budget hearings. 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 8 
 

A. Election Commissioner (607) – Dave Shively, Election Commissioner 
 
Shively stated he needs an additional $30,000 due to the increase in early voting requests.  He 
noted he had anticipated 20,000 requests and received 84,000 requests. 
 
When asked if funds were saved due to reduced staff and fewer polling sites during the recent 
election, Shively answered some funds were saved; however, with the increase in temporary 
staff and overtime costs, the amount saved was not significant. 
 
Shively reviewed the budget request (Exhibits 2 and 3).  He noted July 6th is the deadline for 
petitions to be turned in and he is anticipating at least four will be filed.  Additionally, he stated 
while no retirements are anticipated this year, he is anticipating retirements in the upcoming 
years. 
 
Meyer discussed the potential updates to the Election Office building.  Shively added he would 
like the facility study architect to see the operations on election night to see how things are 
done now, and how they can be improved upon with an updated facility. 
 
Shively thanked the Purchasing Department for the extra supplies during the recent elections. 
 
Meyer reminded Shively about the payroll system upgrades.  
 

B. Visitors Promotion Committee (18, 19) – Jeff Maul, Vice President - Executive 
Director, Lincoln Convention & Visitors Bureau 

 
Derek Feyerherm, Director of Sales and Operations for the Lincoln Convention & Visitors 
Bureau, was also in attendance. 
 
Maul reviewed the budget request (see agenda packet) and noted that, while things are still 
slow, he anticipates travel and tourism to increase, and would like the opportunity to amend the 
budget after six months if the lodging tax funds would allow.  Meyer added the current year 
contract amount has been decreased due to the pandemic, and the additional funds from the 
decrease could help cover additional increased budget amendments later in the upcoming fiscal 
year. 
 
Schorr entered the meeting at 9:21 a.m., exited the meeting at 9:22 a.m. and returned at 9:24 
a.m. 
 
Maul stated a 2021 Visitor’s Guide will not be printed and instead the remaining 2020 Visitor’s 
Guides will have a leaflet inserted with 2021 information.  A larger emphasis will be made on 
both digital and social media. 
 
Regarding staff salaries and commissions, Maul said hourly-paid staff will not be brought back 
to the staff or services team as current staff will be able to take on these roles.  He noted he 



Page 4 of 8 
 

would like small pay raises for sales staff in the second half of the year.  Currently, commissions 
will not be paid. 
 
Maul stated most of the promotions are going to be for community events, and there will be 
very limited travel to conferences.  He felt the current trend is the local and close surrounding 
areas for tourism as stay-cations are increasing.  Because many events are not coming to 
Lincoln, the Event Promotion and Sports Event Promotion lines have been decreased. 
 
Schorr said she supports the effort to pay commissions to the sales staff. 
 
When asked if the $1,000,000 revenue is from football, Meyer answered it does include football 
and conferences coming back to Lincoln.  Maul added tourism has always turned around fairly 
quickly. 
 
Eagan asked Maul to send the request for a .05% increase from the lodging funds to go to the 
Visitors Promotion Improvement Fund to Derbin and Eagan to be scheduled for Board action at 
a later date. 
 
Meyer reviewed the Visitors Improvement Fund (see agenda packet).  He noted the allocations 
will depend on how the revenue comes in.  
 

C. Administrative Services (613) – Ann Ames, Chief Deputy Administrative 
Officer 

 
Meyer stated the expenses decreased 4.60% (Exhibit 4).  Ames noted there are additional 
expenses due to Eagan’s retirement. 
 

D. Crisis Center (63) – Scott Etherton, Mental Health Crisis Center Director 
 
Meyer stated the expenses increased 2.02% and the revenue increased 3.69% (Exhibit 5).  He 
noted the Mental Health Crisis Center (MHCC) has its own fund, and that fund balance at the 
end of June 30th will be worked into the numbers presented today. 
 
Etherton said the most pronounced expenses are a $28,000 increase from the Information 
Services (IS) services cost restructure, office chairs, and $6,000 for an additional microphone or 
camera.  Additionally, he is planning on the reclassification of a financial position. 
 
Regarding revenues, Etherton reported Medicaid reimbursement has increased from previous 
years.  If Medicaid expands, there is a potential for it to increase.  Medicare revenues have 
decreased, in part due to Medicaid revenues increasing.  Region V funding will decrease due to 
Medicaid expansion.  He added there is an increase in the out-of-county rates for the MHCC. 
 
There are fewer post-commitment days projected than last year.  While both the total number 
of individuals staying at the MHCC has decreased and the number of individuals within the 



Page 5 of 8 
 

county staying at the MHCC have decreased, the number from other counties has increased.  
Also, the length of stay is lower than in previous years.  He is projecting to have over 700 
admissions this year. 
 
Meyer reminded Etherton about the payroll system upgrades.  
 
Schorr asked Etherton if he was able to document any increase in demand for services for 
CARES Act reimbursement.  Etherton answered he had purchased extra supplies but had not 
seen an increase in a number of patients yet.  Codes were added to the computer system to 
help track COVID-related items.  
 
Meyer reminded the Board about the upcoming Tuesday budget meeting with the joint City-
County departments. 
 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT 
 

A. Legislative Retreat Location 
 
It was the consensus of the Board to keep the format of last year’s meeting. 
 

B. Tri-County Retreat Location 
 
Schorr suggested holding the retreat at a location able to accommodate social distancing. 
 
5. BREAK 
 
The meeting was recessed at 10:15 a.m. and reconvened at 10:34 a.m. 
 
6. RECYCLING IN THE COUNTY – Elizabeth Elliott, Director, and Donna Garden, 

Assistant Director, City of Lincoln Transportation and Utilities 
 
Elliott and Garden reviewed a PowerPoint presentation (Exhibit 6) noting four or five recycling 
sites would remain in Lincoln after site consolidations.  No recycling sites would be out in the 
County.  Current sites in the county are in Waverly, Roca, Bennet, Davey, Denton, Firth, 
Hickman, Malcolm, and Panama.  County sites would have separate agreements with the 
respective municipalities.  The changes to the current program will need to be made by 
September 1, 2020. 
 
7. TRUCK TRAFFIC ON SALTILLO ROAD – Pam Dingman, Lancaster County Engineer 
 
Dingman discussed pictures showing the current condition of Saltillo Road (Exhibits 7-9), stating 
the conditions contribute to hazardous driving.  Additionally, poor construction company 
behavior has been observed.  She said she has sent the construction company a list of her 



Page 6 of 8 
 

concerns and has spoken with construction staff members.  Because the job is a state job, she 
is unable to require a soil permit which includes road maintenance conditions. 
 
Dingman proposed to reduce the speed on Saltillo Road (Exhibit 10) to 45 miles per hour in the 
construction zone.  She added her staff has already done patching on the road, and those have 
already begun to fail.  State statute § 60-681 allows the County to reduce the weight of trucks 
on the roads if the roads are in poor condition.  Also, she has spoken with the State Department 
of Transportation and they want to remain partners with the County. 
 
Dingman requested permission to use on-call contracts to patch the road tomorrow. 
 
Schorr stated she supports the emergency repair and reduction in speed.  She asked if a lower 
truck weight would result in more trucks on the road.  Dingman answered heavier trucks lead to 
more damage on the road.  She expressed concern that the trucks would find alternative routes 
that would lead to poor behavior on other roads.  Additional costs associated with the project 
are being documented.  
 
Regarding truck weight limit enforcements, Dingman said there would be extra signage and the 
Board would approve a resolution.  Also, a mobile scale can be used. 
 
MOTION:  Amundson moved and Vest seconded to authorize Pam Dingman, Lancaster County 
Engineer, to sign an agreement in a form acceptable to the County Attorney with a contractor 
based on the three informal bids received for repair work in the area of 96th and Saltillo Road in 
an amount not to exceed $24,999. 
 
Schorr stated Saltillo is the most dangerous road in the County and the longer repairs wait the 
more dangerous the road becomes. 
 
Dingman said this action helps with this road and she is looking into additional ways to for the 
department to contract for these types of issues. 
 
ROLL CALL:  Schorr, Amundson, Yoakum, Vest and Flowerday voted yes.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
8. COVID-19 UPDATE AND RESPONSE 
 
No updates were given. 
 
9. CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT 
 

A. Legislative Retreat Location 
B. Tri-County Retreat Location 

 
Items A-B moved forward on agenda. 
 



Page 7 of 8 
 

OTHER MEETINGS 
 
Schorr noted the County-City Common meeting is scheduled for July 13, 2020. 
 
Regarding the agenda, Flowerday will contact Jane Raybould to add a law enforcement training 
dialogue to for a future meeting agenda. 
 
10. DEPUTY CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT 
 

A. Lancaster County 2020 Priorities 
 
Item moved forward on agenda. 
 

B. Claim for Review from the Lancaster County Engineers Office – Pam 
Dingman, Lancaster County Engineer 

 
Dingman reviewed the claim (see agenda packet) and stated it took one year to get the 
documentation for the claim.  This consultant will not be used in the future. 
 
MOTION:  Amundson moved and Vest seconded to roll the claim as a regular claim to the next 
Tuesday agenda.  Schorr, Amundson, Yoakum, Vest and Flowerday voted yes.  Motion carried 
5-0. 
 

C. Telework Policy 
 
It was the consensus of the Board for Ames and Derbin to create a formal telework policy. 
 
11. DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 

A. Parks & Recreation Advisory Board Meeting – Vest 
B. Realtors Association Government Affairs Committee – Amundson 
C. Mutual Aid Meeting – Schorr / Vest 
D. Visitors Promotion Advisory Committee – Amundson 

 
Items A-D moved forward on agenda. 
 
OTHER MEETINGS 
 
NACO 
 
Amundson said there were discussions on COVID-19, upcoming county fairs, and the counties’ 
responsibilities regarding box culvert maintenance.  All CARES Act funds need to be spent by 
December 2020.  CARES Act funding will be distributed on a first come, first serve basis.  Schorr 



Page 8 of 8 
 

added the County’s cost for personnel costs for employees who were on emergency leave to 
provide childcare is not reimbursable by COVID-19 funding reimbursements. 
 
Schorr stated the National Association of County Officials (NACo) meeting will be held virtually 
and that NACO will vote on the County’s behalf.  Additionally, the certification for county 
treasurers, Dix’s upcoming retirement and NACO staffing, and election commissioner 
appointments and connected lawsuit were also discussed. 
 
Schorr said the annual NACO meeting will be held in December. 
 
12. SCHEDULE OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS 
 
Informational only. 
 
13. EMERGENCY ITEMS 
 
There were no emergency items. 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION:  Schorr moved and Vest seconded to adjourn the meeting at 11:32 a.m.  Schorr, 
Amundson, Yoakum, Vest and Flowerday voted yes.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 

 






















































